
1 
 

A G E N D A 
CITY OF LAKEPORT PLANNING COMMISSION 

Wednesday, June 14, 2023 
 
 

 
If you cannot attend in person, and would like to speak on an agenda item, you can access the 
Zoom meeting remotely: 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81411354347?pwd=UjM3RlhIV1NVUmFZRkV1dUtrRjVHUT09 

  

Passcode: 847985 
Or One tap mobile: 

 

US: +16694449171,,81411354347#,,,,*847985# or 
+13462487799,,81411354347#,,,,*847985# 

 

Or Telephone: 
 

Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): US: +1 669 444 9171 or +1 346 248 
7799 

 

Webinar ID: 814 1135 4347 
Passcode: 847985 

 

International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kd19TfI3r7 
 

The City wants you to know that you can also submit your comments by email to 
vfernandez@cityoflakeport.com  

 

To give the Staff adequate time to print out your comments for consideration at the meeting, please submit 
your written comments prior to 4:30 p.m. 
 

Please indicate in the email Subject Line "FOR PUBLIC COMMENT" and list the item number you wish to 
comment on. 
 
Comments that you want read to the Council will be subject to the three-minute time limitation (approximately 
350 words). Written comments that are only to be provided to Council and not read at the meeting will be 
distributed to the Council prior to the meeting. 
 
The City of Lakeport thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading the COVID-19 
virus. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81411354347?pwd=UjM3RlhIV1NVUmFZRkV1dUtrRjVHUT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kd19TfI3r7
mailto:vfernandez@cityoflakeport.com


Regular Meeting Lakeport Planning Commission March 8, 2023 

 

2 
 

 

A G E N D A 
CITY OF LAKEPORT 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING:  Wednesday, June 17, 2023, 5:30 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 225 Park Street 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 

 

5:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL: 

 
  

III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Urgency Items:  To add an item, the Commission is required 

to make a majority decision that an urgency exists (as 

defined in the Brown Act) and a two-thirds determination 

that the need to take action arose subsequent to the 

agenda being posted. 
 

  Move to accept the agenda as posted or move to add or 

delete items. 

 

IV. COMMUNICATIONS: 

 
  

 A.   Public Input: Any person may speak for three minutes about any subject 

within the authority of the Planning Commission, provided 

that the subject is not already on tonight’s agenda.  Persons 

wishing to address the Planning Commission are required to 

complete a Citizen’s Input form and submit it to the 

Community Development Director prior to the meeting 

being called to order.  While not required, please state your 

name and address for the record. 
 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR: The following Consent Agenda items are expected to be 

routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by 

the Commission at one time without any discussion.  Any 

Planning Commissioner may request that any item be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion under the 

Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Minutes: Approval of the completed minutes from the Special 

Planning Commission meeting of February 16, 2022.  

 

VI. REGULAR CALENDAR: 
 

  

 A. Lake County Contractors 

Application #2023-14 
Application for an Architectural and Design review and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for the construction of a 7-

foot-tall, galvanized chain link fence located at 301 & 401 

Industrial Avenue, further described as APNs: 005-045-46 & 

005-045-49. 



Regular Meeting Lakeport Planning Commission March 8, 2023 

 

3 
 

 B. Upward Architects – 

Application #2023-08 
Application for the adoption of a Master Sign Program 

review and Categorical Exemption, that would include the 

construction of a 35-foot-tall sign as well as a 6-foot 

monument sign for the shopping center located at 2019 S 

Main Street, further described as APN: 005-045-40. 

 C. Waterstone Residential – 

Application #2023-01 
Application for a Tentative Parcel Map that would allow for 

the subdivision of the existing property into four (4) separate 

lots.  The project is located at 1310 Craig Avenue, further 

known as APN:  005-030-51. 

VII. Correspondence  

   

VIII. Comments from Staff 

     or Commissioners: 

 

 

 

IV. SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING: Discuss and set the next meeting date (July 12, 2023). 

 

   

X. ADJOURNMENT:  

   
 

 

APPEALS: 

The applicant or affected persons not satisfied with the decision of the Planning Commission may file an appeal.  

Affected persons include individuals who received notice of a land use application, or who attended the 

Planning Commission meeting and made verbal comments or submitted written comments in response to the 

notice.  An appeal of a decision made by the Planning Commission shall be filed with the Community 

Development Director within five business days of the decision.  Said appeal shall be filed on the prescribed form 

and accompanied by the fee in the amount set by Resolution of the City Council. 

 

ACCESSIBILITY: 

The City of Lakeport, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests individuals who require 

special accommodations to access, attend and/or participate in the City meeting due to disability, to please 

contact City Clerk’s Office, (707) 263-5615, 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting to ensure reasonable 

accommodations are provided. 



NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 1 March 8, 2023 
 
 

 

 

CITY OF LAKEPORT PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING – March 8, 2023, MINUTES 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL:  Chair Mitchell called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. with Commissioners 

Maxman, Knorr, Barnett, and Combs present.  Also present was City Manager, Kevin Ingram, Associate Planner, 

Victor Fernandez, and Administrative Analyst, Linda Sobieraj.   
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:   
 

Commissioner Maxman made a motion to accept the agenda as posted.  Seconded by Commissioner 

Combs.  Motion carried by voice vote. (5-0). 
 

COMMUNICATIONS:  Administrative Specialist, Mel Olea introduced himself to the Planning Commissioners. 
 

CONCENT CALENDAR:   
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Knorr, to accept the minutes.  Seconded by Commissioner Combs.  

(Minutes from the Regular Planning Commission February 16, 2023).  Motion carried by voice vote (5-0). 
 

REGULAR AGENDA:  
 

Annual Election of Planning Commission Officers 
 

City Manager, Ingram briefed the Planning Commission on the process of electing officers for the 2023 year. 
 

Commissioner Barnett moved to nominate Commissioner Maxman as Chairperson, Commissioner Combs as 

Vice Chairperson of the City of Lakeport Planning Commission for calendar year 2023, and 

Kevin M. Ingram, Acting Community Development Director as Secretary.  Seconded by Commissioner Knorr. 
 

The vote was called and was as follows: 
 

AYES: Commissioners Maxman, Barnett, Combs, Knorr, and Chair Mitchell. (5-0) 

NOES: None 

ABSENT:  None 
 

Kevin & Kenneth Romberg - Application #2023- 02 -   
 

Associate Planner Fernandez briefed the Planning Commission on an application for a Use Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for a short-term rental at the property located at 2432 Lakeshore Blvd., APN: 

026-031-11. 
 

Commissioners asked questions regarding parking and possible additional conditions of approval after 

inspections.   
 

Public hearing opened at 5:48 p.m.,   Public hearing closed with no input at 5:41 p.m.   
 

Categorical Exemption Approval 

Commissioner Combs moved that the Planning Commission find that Application 2023-02 as applied for by 

Kevin Romberg is categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15301 and of the CEQA guidelines.  Seconded by 

Commissioner Knorr and carried by voice vote (5-0). 
 

Use Permit Approval 

Commissioner Combs moved that the Planning Commission find that the Use Permit applied for by Kevin 

Romberg, on property located at 2432 Lakeshore Blvd does meet the requirements of Section 17.24.040 of the 

Lakeport Zoning Ordinance; consistent with the objectives and policies of the Lakeport General Plan; and 

subject to the project conditions of approval (Attachment B), and with the findings listed in the March 8, 2023, 

staff report.  Seconded by Commissioner Mitchell and carried by voice vote (5-0). 
 



NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 2 March 8, 2023 
 
 

Commissioner Barnett recused himself at 5:45 p.m. from the next item as he has a property within 500 feet of the 

property.  
 

Justin Sokol – Application #2023-03 – 
 

Associate Planner Fernandez briefed the Planning Commission on an application for a Use Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for a short-term rental at the property located at 825 N Forbes Street, APN:  025-

231-02. 
 

Public hearing opened at 5:48 p.m., Applicant Justin Sokol spoke in favor the project.  Public hearing closed 

with no input at 5:50 p.m.   
 

Categorical Exemption Approval 

Commissioner Knorr moved that the Planning Commission find that Application 2023-03 as applied for by Justin 

Sokol is categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15301 and of the CEQA guidelines.  Seconded by 

Commissioner Combs and carried by voice vote (5-0). 
 

Use Permit Approval 

Commissioner Mitchell moved that the Planning Commission find that the Use Permit applied for by Justin Sokol, 

on property located at 825 N. Forbes Street does meet the requirements of Section 17.24.040 of the Lakeport 

Zoning Ordinance; consistent with the objectives and policies of the Lakeport General Plan; and subject to the 

project conditions of approval (Attachment B), and with the findings listed in the March 8, 2023, staff report.  

Seconded by Commissioner Combs and carried by voice vote (5-0). 
 

Commissioner Barnett returned to the meeting at 5:51 p.m. 
  

Manager Ingram briefed the Planning Commission on the Goals and Work Program from 2022/2023 and 

discussed the Planning Department and Planning Commission Goals for the 2023/2024 goals. 

 

Commissioners asked questions regarding outdoor dining process, if can the speed limit on Main Street be 

lowered, the ability to report problems via text, the South Main Street Annexation, the demolition of the old 

Natural High building, repaving of Main Street, and an update on the Eleventh Street project. 
 

2022 Reporting Year Housing Element Annual Progress Report 
 

Associate Planner Fernandez briefed the Planning Commission on the 2022 Housing Element Annual Progress 

Report prior to submitting it to the Department of California Housing and Community Development.   
 

Planning Commissioners ask questions regarding possible subsidies available to assist with building of moderate-

income housing, available buildable properties in the city limits, and number of Accessory Dwelling Units in the 

city. 
 

CORRESPONDENCE:   
 

The Commission discussed the current project pending list. 
 

COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND COMMISSIONERS:   
 

Manager Ingram advised the Martin Street Apartments Phase III had its first hearing with City Council and the 

General Plan Amendment and Zone Change is scheduled for the April 4, 2023, meeting. 
 

Ingram advised the tenant improvement plans for the old Kmart building have been received and are being 

processed. 
 

Chair Maxman advised he had the opportunity to look at outdoor dining in other areas.  
 

DISCUSS AND SET THE NEXT MEETING DATE:   
 

It was agreed by consensus that the next regular meeting to be held on Wednesday, February 8, 2023, at 5:30 

p.m.  The meeting was adjourned and closed at 6:46 p.m. 
 

____________________________________________________ 

Kevin M. Ingram, City Manager 













































































































  

 

 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
 

DATE: June 14, 2023 

  

FILE NO: 2023-01 

  

APPLICANT: Peter Schellinger 

Waterstone Residential 

1270 Airport Blvd 

Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

LOCATION: 

 

GENERAL PLAN: 

 

ZONING: 

 

 

605 South Main Street (025-563-12) 

 

Major Retail 

 

C-2, Major Retail 
 

 

1310 Craig Avenue 

 

Residential/High-Density Residential 

 

R-1/R-3, Residential and High-Density Residential 

STAFF CONTACT: Victor Fernandez, Associate Planner 
  

REQUESTED ACTION:  The Planning Commission is being asked to review and approve 

an application for a Tentative Parcel Map, that would allow for the subdivision of the 

existing property into four (4) separate lots. The project is located at 1310 Craig Avenue, 

further described as APN 005-030-51. 

 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is a 15.16+ acre residential parcel located on the 

western side of State Route 29 in the City of Lakeport. The site is currently vacant, and is 

adjacent to an existing subdivision of single-family homes. The following surrounding 

uses are identified in the table below:  

 

 Existing Uses General Plan Zoning 

Project Site Vacant Low-Density 

Residential and 

High-Density 

Residential 

Low-Density 

Residential and 

High-Density 

Residential 

North Commercial 

Storage Units and 

Single-Family 

Residential  

 

  

Major Retail and 

Residential 

Low-Density 

Residential and 

Major Retail 

South Single-family 

Residences and 

Residential and 

Open Space 

Low-density 

Residential and 



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 2     Staff Report 

 

Westside Park Open Space 

West  Vacant Parkland Open Space Open Space 

East   Lakeport Post Acute 

Nursing Home and 

Commercial 

Businesses 

High Density 

Residential and 

Major Retail 

High Density 

Residential and 

Service Commercial 

 

 

Vicinity Map 
 

GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING DISTRICT:  The subject property is designated as 

Residential, with a portion being High-Density Residential according to the City of 

Lakeport General Plan Land Use Map and is within the R-1 (Residential) and R-3 (High-

Density Residential) zoning district according to the City Zoning Map. In December, 

2022, the project provided a General Plan Amendment and Zone Change to reflect 

the current zoning and general plan designations. A General Plan map is provided 

below: 

 



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 3     Staff Report 

 

 
Current General Plan Designation 

 

 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP: In accordance with the provisions of the City of Lakeport 

Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted a tentative parcel map (TPM) 

application for the purpose of subdividing a 15.16+ into four (4) parcels. The proposed 

parcel map would include the following parcels: 

• Parcel 1 – The proposed parcel, measuring approximately 5.76 acres, is located 

north of Yankee Avenue. It falls under the zoning designation of high-density 

residential and low-density residential. Access to this parcel in future construction 

would be provided by the proposed extension of Yankee Avenue and Fenway 

Avenue. 

• Parcel 2 – The proposed parcel, measuring approximately 3.24 acres, is located 

south of Yankee Avenue and west of Fenway Avenue. It is designated as high-

density residential zoning. Access to this parcel in future construction would be 

facilitated by the proposed extension of Yankee Avenue and Fenway Avenue. 

• Parcel 3 – The proposed parcel, measuring approximately 0.32 acres, is located 

east of Fenway Avenue. It is designated as low-density residential. Access to this 

parcel in future construction would be provided by Fenway Avenue.  

• Parcel 4 – The proposed parcel, measuring approximately 2.85 acres, is located 

east of Fenway Avenue. It is designated as low-density residential zoning.   



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 4     Staff Report 

 

Access to this parcel in future construction would be provided by Fenway 

Avenue. 

 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map 

 
Additionally, 1.66 acres will be dedicated for the Public Right-of-Way to extend Yankee 

and Fenway Avenue (Please refer to Attachment A). 

 

The applicant has submitted a request for a deviation in accordance with Section 

16.12.020.L of the Lakeport Municipal Code. This section requires the subdivider to 

specify any deviations from the city standards. Specifically, the western section of 

Yankee Avenue is proposing perpendicular parking directly accessible from Yankee 

Avenue. It should be noted that a sidewalk is present behind the parking spaces (as 

depicted in the image below). This arrangement serves as an internal roadway and 

serves the purpose of traffic calming, given the proximity of parking to the street. 

Additionally, the City Engineer has reviewed the proposed street improvements and has 

indicated that the street is consistent with the standard plans for minor residential 

streets. However, a condition of approval has been added that requires the roadway 

standard for this section to be developed and provided to the City for review and shall 

be incorporated into the City of Lakeports Engineering Design Standards.  



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 5     Staff Report 

 

 
 

Proposed Roadway and Parking 
 

Staff reviewed all of the criteria applicable to this project and has determined that the 

proposed Tentative Parcel Map is in compliance with the Subdivision Ordinance and 

the Lakeport Municipal Code at this location.  

 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND TITLE 16 OF THE LAKEPORT 

MUNICIPAL CODE / SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE: 

The project as submitted is consistent with the requirements as set forth in the California 

Subdivision Map Act and the Lakeport Subdivision Ordinance, for a subdivision of four or 

fewer parcels. The plans have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 

Lakeport Subdivision Ordinance and suitable for recordation with the Lake County 

Recorder.  

 

The proposed lots demonstrate suitability for their intended use as a residential and 

high-density residential subdivision. The location of the subdivision aligns with the 

predominantly residential nature of the surrounding area, ensuring consistency with 

neighboring properties. The size and shape of the lots are appropriate, considering the 

flat topography of the site. Moreover, the proposed lot sizes comply the minimum 

requirements specified in the applicable Zoning Ordinance for both the R-3 District and 

the R-1 District. Consequently, the proposed lots are well-suited for their intended 

purpose, accommodating two high-density parcels and two residential parcels. The 

high-density residential lots adequately allocate land area for parking, landscaping, 

utilities, and other present and future site improvements. 

 

The project entails the inclusion of an interior road and right-of-way, which would 

commence at Fenway Avenue and connect with Yankee Avenue, while also 

extending Yankee Avenue to the western boundary of the property. The allocated 

right-of-way would be a width of 56 feet, occupying a total area of 1.66 acres or 72,389 

square feet. The proposal has been reviewed by the City Engineer, which has 

confirmed that the proposed streets align with the established residential standards. 



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 6     Staff Report 

 

Furthermore, the right-of-way improvements harmonize with the existing construction 

found in the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Under Section 16.12.120 of the Lakeport Municipal Code, if the Tentative Parcel Map is 

approved or conditionally approved, the applicant will be required to file a Final Parcel 

Map, in which the City of Lakeport City Council will review and take action upon.  

 

AGENCY REVIEW COMMENTS: The submitted plans were provided to the Building 

Official, City Engineer, City Public Works, Police, and Fire District for their review.  

• Building Official: No comments 

• City Engineer: No comments.   

• Public Works, Roads/Utilities: The water main and sewer system shall extend on 

Yankee Avenue to the western property line for future development.  

• City Police:  No Police issues at this time. 

• Fire District: Project requires Wildland Fuel Modification Plan.   

 

Specific project conditions have been included to address agency comments 

received.  The vicinity map (Attachment A) and Project Conditions of Approval 

(Attachment B) are attached. 

 

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 

The proposed project is consistent with the following goals, objectives, policies, and 

specific actions:  

 

• Goal 1: Conserve and Improve Lakeport’s Existing Neighborhoods and Housing 

Supply 

• Policy 1A – The City shall encourage the maintenance and improvement of 

residential areas.  

• Objective LU 1: To preserve and enhance existing residential neighborhoods and 

promote the development of new residential development that compliments 

the existing character and rural nature of Lakeport.  

• Policy LU 1.2 Neighborhood Orientation – Encourage new residential areas to 

have a “neighborhood” orientation.  

• Policy ED 8.3 Neighborhood Compatibility. The location, size, scale, and design of 

neighborhood commercial uses shall complement and meet the needs of the 

surrounding neighborhood. 

 

The project, encompassing the subdivision of the existing 15.16+ acre parcel into four 

individual parcels, aligns with the aforementioned goals and policies stipulated in the 

Lakeport General Plan. Its primary purpose is to enable the development of an 

affordable housing project that has already received thorough review and approval by 

the Lakeport City Council. 

 

By subdividing the parcel, the project aims to contribute to the conservation and 

improvement of Lakeport's existing neighborhoods and housing supply, as outlined in 

Goal 1. The City's policy of encouraging the maintenance and enhancement of 

residential areas (Policy 1A) is effectively addressed through this project. Furthermore, 

the project aligns with Objective LU 1, as it seeks to preserve and enhance existing 

residential neighborhoods while complementing the unique rural character of Lakeport. 



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 7     Staff Report 

 

In terms of neighborhood orientation (Policy LU 1.2), the proposed project adheres to 

the principles of creating a cohesive and harmonious neighborhood environment. 

Additionally, in accordance with Policy ED 8.3, the location, size, scale, and design of 

the proposed project are designed to complement and meet the needs of the 

surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Overall, the project demonstrates compliance with the designated goals, objectives, 

policies, and specific actions defined in the Lakeport General Plan. Its intention to 

subdivide the parcel into four individual parcels is aimed at facilitating the 

development of an affordable housing project that has been reviewed and approved 

by the Lakeport City Council. 

 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT: According to Section 16.12.030 of the 

Lakeport Municipal Code, it is a requirement to conduct an environmental review in 

compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). On December 6, 

2022, the property in question received approval for a General Plan Amendment, Zone 

Change, and the adoption of a mitigated negative declaration (CEQA) for the 

Parkside Residential Project. The Environmental Review encompassed various studies, 

including an Air Quality Study, Biological/Botanical Assessment, Archaeological Study, 

and Traffic Study. All mitigations established for the Parkside Residential Project focused 

solely on construction activities. Since the Tentative Parcel Map falls within the scope of 

the previously conducted Environmental Review for the Parkside Residential Project, the 

property division is not anticipated to have a significant environmental impact.  

 

CONCLUSION, RECOMMENDATION, AND CONDITIONS:  Based on the information 

provided by the applicant and the comments received from City staff, a finding is 

made that the proposed Tentative Parcel Map located at 1310 Craig Avenue is in 

general conformance with the Subdivision Map Act and Lakeport Municipal Code 

Section 16.12 (Subdivision Ordinance). The proposed project has been determined to 

be within the purview of the previously adopted mitigated negative declaration 

(CEQA) for the Parkside Residential Project and is not anticipated to have a significant 

impact on the environment.  

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Tentative Parcel Map 

application subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the staff report 

(Attachment B). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2023-01 / Waterstone Residential /  

1310 Craig Avenue 8     Staff Report 

 

SAMPLE MOTION 
 

Tentative Parcel Map Approval 

I move that the Planning Commission find that the Tentative Parcel Map applied for by 

Waterstone Residential, on property located at 1310 Craig Avenue does meet the 

requirements of Section 16.12 of the Lakeport Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map 

Act; consistent with the objectives and policies of the Lakeport General Plan; and 

subject to the project conditions of approval (Attachment B), and with the findings 

listed in the June 14, 2023, staff report. 

 

Resolution Approval 

I move that the Planning Commission approve the resolution of the City of Lakeport 

Planning Commission for the tentative parcel map (App# 2023-01) to allow for the 

subdivision of 1310 Craig Avenue, into four lots.  

 

The Planning Commission’s approval of the applications shall be subject to the 

conditions of approval specified in the staff report and/or as amended by the Planning 

Commission at the public hearing. 

 
Attachment A:    Vicinity Map  

Attachment B: Draft Project Conditions Agreement 

Attachment C:   Application; Tentative Parcel Map 

Attachment D : Draft Resolution 

 

 



 
 
 
 

Attachment A: 
Vicinity Map 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C
re
e
k
s
id
e
D
r

Forbes Creek

Forbes Creek

Camden Ave

F
e
n
w
a
y
S
t

Charlie Jolin Way

Forbes Creek

P
a
c
if
ic

R
e
a
g
e
n
c
y
W
a
y

Craig Ave

P
a
c
if
ic

R
e
a
g
e
n
c
y
W
a
y

W
ri

g
le
y
S
t

W
ri
g
le
y
S
t

Yankee Ave

Charlie Jolin Way

W
ri
g
le
y
S
t

Ch
a r

lie
Jo
li
n
W
a
y

Vicinity Map

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Lake County, CA, California
State Parks, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, Bureau of
Land Management, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

City Limit

Lakeport Parcels (2023)

5/30/2023, 3:16:00 PM

0 0.04 0.070.02 mi

0 0.06 0.110.03 km

1:2,257

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder



 
 
 
 

Attachment B: 
Project Conditions Agreement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
Community Development Department 

225 Park Street 
Lakeport, Ca  95453 

 
PROJECT CONDITIONS AGREEMENT 

Land Use Application File No. 2023-01 
  

 
 

This Agreement is entered into by Waterstone Residential 
 (hereinafter Applicant/Owner). 

 

 
RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, Applicant/Owner applied to the City of Lakeport for a Tentative 
Parcel Map approval for the division of an existing parcel into four parcels; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lakeport Planning Commission has reviewed and 
approved the project in conformance with the Lakeport Subdivision Ordinance, 
Subdivision Map Act, and Lakeport Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lakeport Planning Commission has reviewed and 
approved the deviation of the City of Lakeport Roadway Standards consistent 
with Section 16.12.020.L of the Lakeport Municipal Code for the portion of 
Yankee Avenue west of the intersection with Fenway Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is hereby approved subject to the 
following conditions:    

 
1. The applicant/owner shall sign this standard City of Lakeport Project Conditions 

Agreement which lists the conditions of approval and shall agree to said 
conditions.  A copy of this signed agreement shall be returned to the Community 
Development Department prior to operation. 
 

2. The project shall be developed in accordance with the plans and specifications 
received by the City on April 26, 2023 and as approved by the Lakeport Planning 
Commission on June 14, 2023.  Minor alterations may be approved in writing by 
the City of Lakeport Community Development Director or his/her designee.  

 
3. The applicant/owner/developer shall prepare a Final Parcel Map in accordance 

with the provisions of the City of Lakeport Subdivision Ordinance and California 
Subdivision Map Act. Said map shall be recorded in accordance with the time 
frames as set forth in the City Subdivision Ordinance.  

 
4. The applicant/owner/developer shall cause the parcel map to be prepared by 

a licensed land surveyor. Said map shall be submitted with all data required by 



2023-01 / 1310 Craig Avenue                                 -2-              Project Conditions Agreement 

the City Subdivision Ordinance, including traverse sheets, guarantee of title, tax 
statements, and other required data. The developer shall pay the required 
review checking and filing fees.  

 
5. The applicant/owner shall provide updated Title Reports (not older than six 

months at the time of submittal) for each affected property. If necessary, the 
applicant/owner shall obtain the consent of lienholders prior to the recordation 
of the Parcel Map.  

 
6. Prior to construction of the Right-of-Way improvements, the 

applicant/owner/developer shall comply with the Lakeport Municipal Code 
Chapter 8.40 (Stormwater Management), the Lake County Clean Water 
Program Storm Water Management Plan and the requirements of the California 
Water Resources Control Board (NPDES Phase II/Construction Activities Storm 
Water General Permit requirements) during the construction of improvements, if 
applicable.  Copies of the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Notice of Intent (NOI), Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP), and Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) shall be provided to the City prior to any 
construction activities.  All erosion control measures and construction activities 
shall be completed in accordance with the project’s Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan. 

 
7. Prior to construction of the Right-of-way improvements, the 

applicant/owner/developer shall provide the City Engineer with a detailed 
roadway standard for the portion of Yankee Avenue west of the intersection with 
Fenway Avenue that does not currently meet the City of Lakeport’s Road Design 
and Construction Standards.  This roadway standard shall be reviewed and 
approved by the City Engineer prior to the submittal of improvement plans and 
construction of right-of-way improvements. 

 
8. Prior to the recordation of the final map, the applicant/owner/developer shall 

dedicate area within the parcel map as needed for drainage, public utility 
easements, and other easements. All easements shall also be depicted on the 
final map.  

 
9. Prior to the recordation of the final map, the applicant/owner/developer shall 

comply with all requirements related to the project’s sewer system, including the 
payment of the standard CLMSD sewer expansion fee. (Sewer expansion fees 
are indexed annually to the CPI index and adjusted for inflation each July in 
accordance with Resolution 2271 (2006).)    

 
10. Prior to the recordation of the final map, a note shall be placed on the final map 

indicating: The applicant/owner/developer shall pay the required water 
expansion fee.  (Water expansion fees are indexed annually to the CPI index and 
adjusted for inflation each July.)   

 
 
 



2023-01 / 1310 Craig Avenue                                 -2-              Project Conditions Agreement 

11. Durable survey monuments shall be installed at the following locations: 
a. Boundary corners 
b. At the beginning and ending of property line curves and points of 

intersection 
c. Lot corners or at any other location at the discretion of the City 

Engineer.  
 

12. A note shall be placed on the final map indicating that a Wildland Fuel 
Modification Plan, in compliance with the Lakeport Fire Department’s 
requirement, shall be established prior to the issuance of a building permit for 
future development.   
 

13. The Tentative Parcel Map shall expire twenty-four months from its approval by 
the Planning Commission, unless the expiration date is extended in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 16.08.120, which shall be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Commission.  

 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED: 
1. That the applicant/owner has read and agrees to each and every item 

and condition herein. 

2. That the development and use of the real property described herein shall 
conform to the conditions listed above and all City of Lakeport Ordinances 
and Resolutions where applicable. 

3. That said conditions shall be binding on all owners or persons having or 
acquiring any right, title, or interest in said real property, or any part thereof, 
subject to this agreement. 

 
APPLICANT 
       
 
____________________________   ______________________                
SIGNATURE- Peter Schellinger    Dated: 
Waterstone Residential 
                                                                            
 
____________________________ 
PLEASE PRINT NAME 
 
cc: Project File 
 



 
 
 

Attachment C: 
Application; Site Plan and Floor Plan 

  



Δ

Δ

Δ

Δ

Δ

Δ Δ

Δ

Δ

Δ

Δ

C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G

C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G

L
A
N
D

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G

M
E
L
L

E
S

N
U



C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G

C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G

L
A
N
D

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G

M
E
L
L

E
S

N
U



C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G

C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G

L
A
N
D

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G

M
E
L
L

E
S

N
U



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D: 
Draft Resolution 



 

RESOLUTION NO.   Parcel Map  
290339.v2 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. **** (2023) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT PLANNING COMMISSION 
APPROVING THE TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (APP# 2023-01) TO ALLOW 

FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF 15.16+ ACRES INTO FOUR LOTS, LOCATED AT 
1310 CRAIG AVENUE (APN:005-030-51) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lakeport received an application from Waterstone 
Residential for approval of an Tentative Parcel Map allowing a subdivision of 4 lots 
located at 1310 Craig Avenue (APN 005-030-51); and 
 

WHEREAS, an application for the above-described Tentative Parcel Map has 
been filed pursuant to Chapter 16.12 of the Lakeport Municipal Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, staff has conducted the necessary investigations to ensure the 

proposed division of land would be consistent with the purpose of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance, the Subdivision Map Act, and the regulations of the Lakeport Municipal 
Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, public notice was published and given as required by law, and a 

public hearing was held on June 14, 2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after considering all evidence presented, 

approved the Applicant’s requested Tentative Parcel Map; and 
 
WHEREAS, under Section 16.12.120 of the Lakeport Municipal Code, the 

Applicant shall prepare a Final Parcel Map for the review and approval of the Lakeport 
City Council.   

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT THAT: 
 
A. That the foregoing Recitals are true, correct and a substantive part of this Resolution.  
 
B. The Tentative Parcel Map is in compliance with the following findings: 
 

1. The form and content requirements, accompanying data, and report requirements 
of the TPM generally complies with the Lakeport Subdivision Ordinance. 
 

2. The proposed parcels are suitable for the purpose for which they are intended 
within the Residential and High-Density Residential Zoning Districts.  

 
3. The proposed parcels are of sufficient dimension to facilitate future residential 

and high-density residential land development.  
 



 

RESOLUTION NO.   Parcel Map  
290339.v2 

2 

4. All of the proposed new parcels will be served by City water and sewer.  
 

5. Storm water runoff will be collected and conveyed to an engineered storm drain 
system.  
 

6. The project’s new parcels will be provided with the full range of utilities.  
 

7. The project has adequate access for residential development, which includes the 
construction of street improvements, curbs, gutters, driveways, and other facilities 
within the street right-of way will be provided.  
 

8. The project will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts as 
this project has been reviewed under the California Environmental Quality Act, 
under the previously approved Parkside Residential Project (App# 2021-31).  

 
This Resolution was passed and adopted by the City of Lakeport Planning Commission at 
a regular meeting held on the 14th day of June, 2023. 
 
AYES:   
NOES:     
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:    
   
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Nathan Maxman, Commission Chair 
      City of Lakeport  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Victor Fernandez, Planning Commission Secretary  



PLANNING PROJECTS PENDING 

as of  

June 8, 2023 
 

No. Staff  

Assigned 

File No./Name Date 

Received 

Progress Next 

Action 

PC / Staff Level 

1.  GPA & Zoning Inconsistencies  6/2/2016 Staff currently preparing required exhibit 

maps and ordinance language for 

recommended General Plan and Zone 

changes.   

C.C. review  

   (May / June) 

P.C. Approved 

8/15/2018 

2.  Microenterprise Home Kitchen – AB626 

Application# 2020-25 

 Consideration of the recent Lake County 

ordinance permitting Microenterprise Home 

Kitchens in accordance with AB 626. 

  

3.  Martin Street Phase III – Application #2022-25 – 

519 S Smith Street 

 Application for an Environmental Review and 

Zone Change for the development of a 40-

unit affordable multi-family housing project.  

 CC 1st Reading 

3/7/2023 

4.  Metro Investment Group – Application #2022-04 – 

366 Third Street 

2/8/2022 Application for a Use Permit for a Short-term 

rental that would allow the use of an existing 

single-family dwelling as an Airbnb. 

Waiting on 

amended 

submittal. 

PC Review 

 

5.  Amirrea Hajimohammad – Application# 2022-19 

1095 N Main St. 

5/16/2022 Application for an Architectural and Design 

Review and Categorical Exemption to 

construct a new 1,958 sf commercial building. 

Waiting on further 

information from 

applicant. 

PC Review 

6.  Waterstone Residential – Application# 2023-01 

1310 Craig Ave.  

1/23/2023 Application for a Tentative Parcel Map  PC Approval PC Review 

6/14/2023 

7.  Sandra J Lashly – Application#2023-04  

2301 Beach Lane 

2/1/2023 Application for a Use Permit to allow the 

addition of 4 RV unit spaces for a total of 15 

spaces.  (RV Park was previously approved for 

11 Spaces) 

PC Approval PC Review  

TBD 

8.  Upward Architects – Application# 2023-08  Application for a free-standing sign permit to 

install a 35’ tall free standing sign  

PC Approval PC Review  

6/14/2023 



9.  Lakeport Boat Rentals – Application#2023-09  Application for a Tentative Parcel Map to 

divide APN: 026-031-29 into four parcels. 

PC Approval PC Review 

10.  Pure Organic Medicinals – Application# 2023-10  Application for a Use Permit to allow 

Cannabis Distribution, Indoor cultivation, and 

mobile retail. 

PC Approval PC Review 

11.  Gaslight Grill – Application# 2023-11  Application for an Architectural & Design 

Review, Use Permit, Zoning Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for an 

outdoor dining parklet. 

Waiting on further 

submittal. 

PC Review 

12.  Angelina’s Bakery – Application# 2023-12  Application for an Architectural & Design 

Review, Use Permit, Zoning Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for an 

outdoor dining parklet. 

Waiting on further 

submittal. 

PC Review 

13.  Park Place – Application# 2023-13  Application for an Architectural & Design 

Review, Use Permit, Zoning Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for an 

outdoor dining parklet. 

Waiting on further 

submittal. 

PC Review 

14.  Lake County Contractors – Application# 2023-14  Application for an Architectural and Design 

Review & Categorical Exemption for a 7-foot-

tall fence. 

PC Approval PC Review 

6/14/2023 

15.  Lake County Tribal Health – Application#2023-15  Application to revise the previously approved 

patio area and cover to include two 

bathrooms a utility room, outdoor kitchen and 

solid patio cover. 

PC Approval PC Review 

16.  Pogo’s Pizza – Application# 2023-16  Application for an Architectural & Design 

Review, Use Permit, Zoning Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for an 

outdoor dining parklet. 

Waiting on further 

submittal. 

PC Review 

17.  New Vista Developers – Application# 2023-17  Application for a tentative subdivision map to 

divide into eight parcels. 

  

18.  Ali’s Kitchen – Application# 2023-19  Application for an Architectural & Design 

Review, Use Permit, Zoning Permit and 

Waiting on further 

submittal 

PC Review 



Categorical Exemption to allow for an 

outdoor dining parklet. 

19.  On the Waterfront   Application for an Architectural & Design 

Review, Use Permit, Zoning Permit and 

Categorical Exemption to allow for an 

outdoor dining parklet. 

Waiting on further 

submittal. 

PC Review 

 


	1 - 2023-06-14 Lakeport PC Agenda Draft
	2 - 2023-03-08 PC Minutes draft
	3 - 2023-14 Lake Co Contractors Full Rpt
	4 - 2023-08 Upwards Architects Full Rpt
	5 - 2023-01 Waterstone Residential Full Rpt
	5 - 2023-01 Waterstone Residential
	2023-01 Staff Rpt FINAL
	Attachment A - Vicinity Map
	Attachment B - Draft Project Conditions Agreement
	CITY OF LAKEPORT
	PROJECT CONDITIONS AGREEMENT

	Attachment C - Application, Tentative Parcel Map
	Sheets and Views
	130-21 Tentative Parcel Map-1-SITE PLAN NOTES (4)
	OLE5

	130-21 Tentative Parcel Map-2-NORTH PORTION (2)
	OLE5

	130-21 Tentative Parcel Map-3-SOUTH PORTION (3)
	OLE5



	Attachment D - Draft Resolution

	Attachments

	6 - Pending Project List 2023.6.8

